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UNITED STATES ENVIRONI\'IENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 9

Slalutor)' Authority

The following Findings are made and Notices given un{er the authority vested;n the

Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("liPA") by Seclion 309(g) of the

Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 USc. § 1319(g). The Adminimator has delegated these

authorities to the Regional Administrator of EPA, who has in 1\ rn delegated them 10 the Director

of the Water Division of EPA, Region 9, who hereby issues thi: Complaint and Notice,

Findings of Violation

On the basis of the following facts, the DireCtor of the \later Division of EPA, Region 9

finds that the Frank Coluccio Construction Co, and the Castle r amily Limited Pannership

(collectively "Respondents") are in violation of Section 301(a) )f the CWA, 33 U,S,c. §1311(a).
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IN THE MATIER OF:

Frank Coluccio Construction Co.. and
Castle Family Limited Partnership,

Respondents,

Proceeding to Assess Class II
Administrative Penalty Under
Clean Water Act Section 309(g)
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)
)
)
I
)
)
)
I
)
)
)

o~
Docket No CWA-,tI-2007-0003

AD,'\1I1IISTRAT1VE COMPLAINT
I<'INDINGS OF VIOLATION

Nt )T1CE 01<- I'ROroSED
ASSESS'\'1ENT OF

A t;IVIL I'ENALTV, AND
NO'IICE OJ<' OI'I>()RTUNITY

TO REQUEST A HEARING T1-1EREON



I. UndeT S«UOIl 301(a) of the CWA. it IS unlawful for 3 Iy person to dIscharge any

2 pollulanl. mcluding dredged or fill malena!. from a poml sounx ,nlO any ....·ater of the Unned

3 Slms~ w,thoul 3 pemut Issued under the CWA. 33 U.S.c. § 1311(3).

4 2. Section 404 of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. 11344. ~:Iblishe a penrut program regulaung

5 the dIscharge of dredged or fill material into 'waters of the Urul:"d States:' Under this program.

6 the Army Corps of Engmccrs (the "CorpsM) ha.<; been delegaled he authorIty to ISSue permits for

7 the discharge of dredged or fill malerial. 33 U.S.C. §1344.

8 3, The term "person" is defined in CWA Section 502(5), 33 U.S ,C. §1362(5), to include a

9 corporation. a partnership. and association, in1U iIiil..

10 4. "The tenn "discharge of a pollutanC ll\Cltldcs any addit on of any pollutant to waters of

II the United States from any pomt source. 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12).

12 5. "The IemI "pollutanC IS defined In Section 502(6) of It e CWA. 33 U.S,C. 11362(6), and

13 IIIcltldcs. but IS TIOt limned. to dredged spool. JoM "'aste. rock. ;and, and IndUSlnal waste.

14 6. "The IemI "potnt 5OUru:" mt3n$ any dIscernIble. eonfi. ed and dIscrete eon,eyance. from

15 whIch polhltanl.'i are or may~ dlscharged. 33 U.S.C. 1 1362(14).

16 7. "Navigable waters" are defined as "waters of the Unit.;d St:lles:' 33 U.S.c. 11362(7).

17 "Waters or the United Stales" Include all waters which arc, weT~. or may be used In Interstate

18 commerce, including tidal waters, lheir tributaries, and wetland; adjacent to these waters. 33

19 C.F.R. 1328,3(a): 4() C.F,R. 1230.3(s).

2Q 8. The term ""'ellands" rnean~ those ar-cas thai are inund ued or s.::uurated by surface or

21 groulld water at a freqlJtTlCy and dunl1lon suffiCIent 10 support. llld that under norma1

22 CircUmstanceS do support. a prevalence of ,'egttauon typically.: dapted for hfe m satunued mil

23 condJllons. 33 C.F.R. 1 328(b); 40 C.F.R. § 230.3(t).

24 9. Section 309(&} of the CWA authonus EPA 10 assess m adnnnls'lr'Dt"e civil penally

25 agamst any person ",110 VIolates any faluirement of the CWA. H U.S.C. 1 1319{g). EPA has

26 classified this action as a Class II proceeding. 33 U.S.C. § 131'l(g)(2)(8).

27

28 2



10. Under Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA, Respondent is liable for the adminislnuive

2 assessment of a penally of not more than $11.000 for each day ( f violation. up to a maximum

3 administrative penally of $137,500 for violations occurring bet\'een August 5, 2002 and March

4 15,2004.33 U,S.c. §13l9(g)(2)(B); 19C.F.R, §19.4.

5 11. Each day that a person discharges dredged or fill mat~rial into waters of the United

6 States without a Section 404 pennit and allows such fill to rem: in in place constitutes a separate

7 day of violation of the CWA.

8 12. [n assessing a penalty, EPA must take into account ( ) the nature, circumstances.

9 extent and gravity of the violations. and. with respect to the vio ator, (2) ability to pay. (3) any

10 prior history of CWA violations, (4) the degree of culpability. (;) the economic benefit or

II savmgs (if any) resulting from the violations, and (6) such othel mallers as Justice may require.

[2 33 U.S.c. §13l9(g)(3).

13 13. Frank Coluccio Construction Company ("FCCC") is a corporation based in Oahu.

14 Hawaii and SeanIe, Washington. FCCC is incorponlled in the State of Washington. Therefore,

15 FCCC is a "person" under Section 502(5) oflhe CWA. 33 U.s.C. § 1362(5).

16 14. Castle Family Limited Paf1nership. ("CFLP") is a pal tnership based in Hawaii.

17 Therefore. CFLP is a "person" under Section 502(5) of the CW -\, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(5).

18 IS. By agreement signed August 5, 2002 ("License Agre~ment"), CFLP. through its

19 property management ann Kaneohe Ranch, Ltd., "licensed" FCCC to use propef1y owned by

20 CFLP adjacent to Hamakua Stream as a construction equipmen storage and staging area ("Site").

21 The Site is located on Hamakua Drive (fax Map Key 1-4-2·00: :29). Kailua. Oahu. Hawaii.

22 16. Kawainui Stream, also known as Hamakua Stream, cischarges into a canal thaI

23 directly discharges into the Pacific Ocean. a navigable-in-fact "ater. Hamakua Stream is a

24 perennial. navigable-in-fact water. subject to tidal innuence. Thus. Hamakua Stream and Its

25 adjacent wetlands. which have a hydrological connection to Hamakua Stream ("Hamakua

26 wetlands"). are waters of the United States within the meaning 'Jf Section 502(7) of the CWA.
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17. During the period in 2002 relevant to these Finding, ,)f Violation, FCCC wa, under

2 contract with the City and County of Honolulu ("CCH") to com truet the Kainehe-Hamakua-

3 Keolu Sewer Rehabilitation Project ("sewer project"). FCCC u;cd the Site to ,tore and maimain

4 equipment and materials needed for the sewer project in Augusl 2002.

5 18. The Ueense Agreement requires that FCCC "clear th~ mangrove along the ,tream and

6 haul away the debris." As mangrove i, an obligme species "typ cally adaplCd for life in saturated

7 soil conditions," under the terms of the License Agreement CF .J> directed FCCC to conduct

8 work within the wetlands at the Site.

9 19. Between Augu,t 5 and October 9, 2002, FCCC empl ,yed heavy equipment, including

10 an excavator and bulldozer, to grade portions of the Site and di"harge gravel aeros, the graded

II areas in order to use the Site as a storage area. During thIS peril d, FCCC also used heavy

12 equipment (excavator with "thumb" attachment) to remove the nangrove trees. These activities,

13 i.e.. the movement of gravel from grading and the movement of fill as,ociated with removal of

14 the mangroves. resulted in the discharges of fill material to the Hamakua wetlands.

15 20, In December 2004, the EPA first contacted the Corp, to inquire about activitie, at the

16 Site. In January 2005, EPA contacted the Corp, again to ask whether the Corp, had issued a

17 permit for any discharge> of fill and dredged material, in the w(tlands at the Site. The Corps

18 responded that it had not.

19 21. By letter dated February 3, 2005, the Corp, informed Re,pondent, that fill material

20 wa, allegedly placed into Hamakua Stream and its adjacent wet ands by FCCC without a Corps

21 authorizmion or permit. Thi, letter recommended that no funh~r work be done below the

22 Ordinary High Water Mark within Hamakua Stream and it, adjl cent wetlands until the Corps

23 staff investigated the allegations, and requested maps, photos ar d documentation of the wetlands

24 and construction work at the ,ite.

25 22. The Hawaii Department of Health, Clean Water Brarch ("OOH") in,pected the Site

26 on February 4, 2005 and documented that compacted fill materi II con,isting of gravel. dirt and
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a.phalt, had been deposited within the"Hamakua wetland.". EI'A staff was present at the

2 Inspection and also noted these discharges of fill material within the Hamakua wetlands. EPA

3 staff also observed large stockpiles of eJlcavated soil and rock on top of the compacted fill

4 material.

5 23. In a leller to the Corps dated March 3, 2005, fCCC TTOvided a surveyor's sketch of

6 the Site superimposed on a 2004 wetland map that had been created by Winona Char, an

7 environmental consultant. The sketch showed some encroachrrent of the ba<;e yard on the

8 wetlands along the north and east boundaries of the base yard.

9 24, EPA staff performed a detailcd follow-up inspection of the Site on November 28,

lO 2005, EPA observed that some of the stockpiled soil and rock Ihat was documented in the

11 Hamakua wetlands during the February inspection had been rerHoved. The compacted fill

12 material, consisting of gravel, din and asphalt. remained in the iamakua wetlands. During the

13 November 28 inspection, EPA staff determined the physical eXI~nt of the remaining discharges

14 in the Hamakua wetlands. The extent of fill material in the wet ands was approximately 0,86

15 acres.

16 25, Based on FCCC's response to an EPA information nquest pursuant to Section 308(a)

17 of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1318(a). FCCC graded ponions of th, Site and discharged gravel

18 across the graded areas in order to use the Site as a storage area in 2002, It is unclear when

19 Respondents caused the discharge of additional materials in thi' Hamakua wetlands In the form of

20 the stockpiles or loose material on lOp of the compacted fill mmerial, observed in February 2005,

21 EPA staff's review of an 2001 al'rial of the Site indicmed that n ,ither the compacted fill material

22 nor any stockpiles were on Site prior to 2002.

23 26. Neither Respondents nor any other person obtained a Seclion 404 permit from the

24 Corps for the discharges of dredged or fill material 10 the water, of the United States described in

25 the pre<:eding paragraphs 15-25.
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21. 'Ole earth moving eqUIpment descnbed in paragraph 19 above, "..hlch was used 10

2 place the fill materials into !he Hamakua v.cdands. arc point SlJIIJ'CCS as defined by SectIon

3 502(14) of !he CWA. 33 U.S.c. § 1362(14). The soil and other matcnals placed 1010 lhesc

4 "'alers arcH~ or fill materials'" under Sccuon~ of !he (·WA. 33 C.F.R. §323.2(c), and

S hence arc -pollularlts- under Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U. 'i.C. § 1362(6). The use of canh

6 movmg equIpment 10 place dredged or fill matcrialmto the Wal:l1i oftllc Unlled Statcs

7 conSlllutC;5 a Hdi5Chargc of pollutants'" under Seclion 502(12) of !he CWA, 33 U.s.c. § 1362(12).

8 28. By operating the equlpmenl causmg these discharges dirccung or wpet"Vlsmg such

9 opcrollions. or otherwise causing the discharge of dredged or fill matCTialmto!he Hamakua

10 wctlands. Respondents discharged pollutants to watcn of !he U lited Stalcs WUhlO tile meaning of

II Stttion JOI(a) of the CWA. 33 U.S ,C. § 1311(a). II is untawfu undcrScction 301{a)of thc

12 CWA for uny perron to dischargc dredged or fill mmcriul into v mers of lhc United State~

13 Without a Section 404 pcrmn issued by the Corp~,

14 29. Based on the foregoing. EPA finds that Respondents discharged dredged and fill

15 material from pomt SOUfCCS into the waters of the United Statcs without a duly issued Section

16 404 pennlt, 33 U.S.c. § 1344, in violallon of Secllon 301(a)of .heCWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

17 NOli« of Propowd On!ec Assessing Ci,·i1 Penally

18 JO. Secuon 309(g){2XB) oflhe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319< gX2){B), authonus the

19 admIOistral,,·e assessment of civil pcnalt>es 10 an amounl 001 to e"ceed 510JXlO per day for each

20 day dunng v.hich the violation contmucs, up to. miUlmum pcrallyof 5125.000. Pursuant 10 !he

21 Deb! Collccuon lmpro"cmenl ACI of 1996. 31 U.S.C. § 3701. a ld 40 C.F.R. Pan 19. vlol:llJons

22 that occum-d bcIwcen January 30. 1991 and Mardi 15.::zoc:M an subject to a pcnallyof up to

23 511,000 pcr<by of V1olal1on, up to I malumum penalty of5131 500. ViolallonS thal occur=!

24 aftcr March 15, 2()()4 are subJecl to a penalty of up 10 Sl 1.000 f:r day of ,·iolahOn, up 10 a

2S mUlmum penalty of SIS7.500.
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I 31. Based on the foregCllng Findings of VIolations. and p.rrsuant to S«tlon 309(g) of the

2 CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), EPA Region 9 hertby ptopo5es 10 lS>Ue I Final Order assessing I

3 ci\11 adminiSlnlI'"e penalty of up to S131.500 agamSl Respondfnts.

4 32. EPA propose$the penally in panlgraplt 31 abo"e bas< d on the followmg applicable

5 penalty factors identified m Section 309(g)(3) of lhe CWA. 33 II.S.C, § 1319(g)(3); the nature,

6 circumstllflCes. extenl. and gravity of violallons. Respondents' aoihty to pay, pnor history of

1 violations. degree of culpability. and any economic benefit or s, vings accroing 10 Respondents as

8 3 result of the violations. The violations m this case began in A Jgust 2002 and continue to the

9 present. because the fill and dredged material remain in place. n addition, EPA oonsiders Ihe

10 Vlol3110ns to be senous because. by placmg fill 10 adjacent tidal "'etland habllat.thc discharges

II Imp3Cled~ now and clrculallon. and reduced the reach of Wal:n ofille U.S. Filling Ihc:se

12 "etlands also reduced the functIons of the "etlands, Includmg llood StOl1lge and pollutanl

13 filtratJon.

14 An'"rr and Nolkt ofOpoor1uojlv 10 Rrq!(Sa a IIndog

15 JJ. In order to cootest the facts in the Complamt or the p -oposed penally. «contend that

16 Respondents are entitled to Judgment as a matter of law, Respolldents mUSI file an Answer within

17 thIrty (30) days of receipt or this notice. 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(a). n addition. Respondents may,

18 with'n thirty (30) days of receipt of this nOlice, request a hearin: on the proposed penalty

19 ..ssessmenl. and at the heanng may contest any malerial fact contained in the findlOgs of

20 VIolatIOns abo\"C. and the appropriateness of any penalty amoun.. 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c). The

21 procedures for such a heanng are set OUI m lhe ''Consolidated "ules of the Pra':tICC Govem,ng

22 lhe Adnunistrative Assessment of Civil Penalties. Issuance of (ompliance Of Correc1l\'e Achon

23 Ortkn. and !he Re"OClIlIOll, Termmanon ~ SUSpension of Pernit.M at 40 C.F.R. Part 22

24 (enclo5ed).

25 34. The ans....n shall clearly and directly admit. deny. or ~;<pla,n each of the factual

26 allegatIons conlltlned In thiS Complaint about "'hlclt RespondeJ ts Ita,'e lnowledge. Of shall state

21
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I clearly that Respondents have no knowledge as to a panicular Lemal allegation in this

2 Complaint. 40 C.F.R. § 22. IS(b). The answer shall also slate (lj the circumstances or arguments

3 th31 are alleged to constitute the grounds of defen>cs: (b) the fa ,[s that Respondems intend to

4 place at ,ssue: and (c) whether a hearing is requested. 40 C.F.P, § 22.15(b). Failure to admit,

S deny. or explain any material factual allegations in the Complai It constitutes and admission of

6 the undenied allegations. 40 C.F,R. § 22.15(d).

7 35. Respondents must send the Answer and any request tor a hearing to:

8 Danielle Carr
Regional Hearing Clerk (ORC-I)

9 U.S. EPA, Region 9
75 Hawthorne Street

10 San Francisco,CA 94105
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36. If Respondents request a hearing. members of the pl.lIllic, to whom EPA is obhgated to

give notice of this proposed action, will have a right under Sect on 309(g)(4)(B) of the CWA, 33

U.S.C § 1319(g)(4XB), to be heard and 10 present evidence on he appropriateness of the penalty

assessment. ~ il!..w. 40 CF.R. § 22.45.

37. If Respondents fail to file a written Answer within th ny (30) days of service of this

Complaint, Complainant may file a motion for a Default Order \ssessing Administrative

Penalties. 40 C.F.R. § 22.17(a). Default constitutes a binding ~dmission by Respondents of all

allegations made in the Complaint and a waiver of Respondents' right to a hearing under the

CWA. 40 C.F.R. § 22.17(a). Should the Presiding Officer grant EPA's motion for a Default

Order, the Default Order may become a Final Order fony-five (·15) days after its service. 40

CF.R. §§ 22.17(c) and 22.27(c).

38. Any civil penalty assessed in the Default Order becomes due and payable without

fun her proceedings thiny (30) days after the Default Order beccmes final under 40 CF.R. §

22.27(c) and 40CF.R. § 22.J7(d).

39. Respondents' failure to pay the entire proposed penalty assessed by the Default Order

by its due date may result in acivil action tocolleet the assesse, penalty, plus interest, attorney's

8



fteS. CO!il. of coIlecuon proceedmgs. and an llddmonal quanerly "l(II'l-payment penally pursLWltlo

2 Secuon 309(gX9) of lne CWA. 33 U.S.c. § 1319(&)(9).

) 40. NeHner assessmenl no.- paymenl of an adm,mSlnll"·c c1\·il penally punuantlo this

4 mauer shall affecl RespondenlS' continumg obhgatlon 10 complj wilh the CWA. with any other

5 federal, state or local law, and \\ilh any Order ISSued under CW \ Sccnon 309(a). 33 U.S.c. §

6 1319(a), for lhe violnuons alleged herein.

7 41, For proceedings pursuam to Seclion 309(g)(l) of Ihe CWA, the Complainant muSl

8 provide lhe Slale agency wilh lhe mOSl direcl aUlhority over lhe mailers at issue (here, the Hawaii

9 Departmem of Heallh, Clean Waler Branch "OOH"» opponunl y 10 consull With the

10 Complamant. EPA shall proVide nQIJee 10 DOH \\l1hm 30 day! follOWing proof of service of the

II Complaml on the Respoodents.
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Region 9

9



I Dockel No. CWA-9-2007-OOO3

2

3 CERTIFICATE OF SERvIer

.'i I cemfy thaI the foregoing CI&$$II Awmm5trll1l\·c Coml,iaml "lIS senllO the foll(w'mll

6 pcnons. In the mannet" specified. 01'1 the dale below:

7

8 OngJnal hand deli'"cm:l;

•
10

II

12 Authorized service
Copy by certified mail.

J3 rclum receipt requested:
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D;lJl'clle Carr
RCgJooallleanng Clerl
Office of RCgJooaJ Counsel
U.S. Environmental Proceclioo A ~c:ncy.

RegJOIl 9
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

Franco ColllCcio
Fran!.: Coluccio Construction Co.
94-141 KalaeJoa Blvd.
Kapole,_ III 96707

H. M,tchell O'Olier
Castle family umlted Partnershl ,
1199 Auloo Rd.
Kailua. HI 96734

Alec Wong. Chief
Clean Water BflU'lCh
Hawau Dept. of Health
919 Ala Moana Shod. lTd R...
HonoMu, Hl96814
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D",9f~6 7 ,J;~df/:;-{yA
Hei - Ra:\"cs, Brandl Secretary
Air &. To.'uC$, Water &. Gencl1ll Law Bra 1Ch
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